: 34
Fairburn%'

Situated to Succeed

Planning and Zoning Commission
AGENDA
Tuesday, June 4, 2019 ¢ 7:00 p.m.

\

»> Call to Order
» Roll Call

v

Pledge of Allegiance

> Public Comments
Comments to the Planning and Zoning Commission should be limited to no more than two
minutes. Groups wishing to address an issue should select one or two spokesperson(s). The
time allowed for all issues shall not exceed a total of fifteen minutes. Issues raised at this time
are generally referred to the Zoning Administrator for review. Responses will be provided at a
later date.

> Approval of the Meeting Agenda
Approval of May 7, 2019 Minutes

Y

v

Public Hearing
> Old Business
» New Business:

o Rezoning 19RZ-005 - City of Fairburn: to rezone 0.953 acres of City owned property on
Creekwood Road from AG-1 (Agricultural District) to M-1 (Light Industrial District)

> Staff Report

Commission Comments

Y

» Adjournment

CITY OF FAIRBURN
56 SW Malone Street. Fairburn, GA 30213-1341 | (770) 964-2244 | Fax (770)969-3474 | www.fairburn.com



1L

III.

Iv.

VL

VIL

VIIL

. F
Fairburn¥"

Situated to Succeed

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES

City Hall
56 Malone Street
Fairburn, GA. 30213
Tuesday, May 7, 2019
7:00 P.M.
Elise Stoney, Chairman Jerry Williams (Absent)
Mark Wade, Vice-Chairman (Absent) Shelby Phillips
Elizabeth Echols Tony Smith
Anthony Stewart (Absent)
City Planner: Tarika Peeks
City Attorney: Valerie Ross
Recording Secretary: Kimberly Mitchell

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER: By Chairman Stoney

ROLL CALL: All members of Planning and Zoning Commission were present except for
Commissioners Jerry Williams, Mark Wade and Anthony Stewart.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Recited in unison.
ELECTION OF OFFICERS: None

PUBLIC COMMENTS: None

- APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Commissioner Echols moved to APPROVE the agenda.

Commissioner Smith seconded. The motion carried.

APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MEETING MINUTES: Chairman Stoney requested two
amendments to the minutes. Commissioner Smith made a motion to APPROVE the March 12,
2019 minutes. Commissioner Echols seconded. The motion carried.

PUBLIC HEARING:
Variance 19V-003 — Amcon Industrial:

SUMMARY/STAFF PRESENTATION: To eliminate the 15ft. sign setback to allow for a
monuiment sign to be placed directly along the property line.

Ms. Mitchell stated that the applicant, Amcon Industrial, was requesting a variance from the sign
setback of 15ft. She stated that the applicant was experiencing a hardship due to the wide right-
of-way on the property and was requesting a variance so that their sign could be seen from the
road.



FAIRBURN PLANNING CONMMISSION ACTION MINUTES MAY 7, 2019

Spoke in Favor
Mr. Clay Barnett, 1375 Qakley Industrial Boulevard, Fairburn, GA 30213

Mr. Barnett stated that right-of-way was deep and that without the variance, the sign would be
placed in the parking lot. Commissioner Phillips stated that he drove by the property and did not
see an issue with where the sign was supposed to be placed. Mr. Barnett explained that the
additional 15-foot setback would place the sign in the horseshoe of the parking lot area.
Commissioner Phillips asked if it was that deep and Mr. Barnett replied yes. Mr. Barnett introduced
himself as the Vice President of Amcon Industrial.

Commissioner Phillips stated that he anticipated that Oakley Industrial would be widened due to
traffic. He asked if the variance were approved, would the road widening affect the sign. Ms.
Mitchell responded that the sign would still be on private property. She added that if the road were
widened, the sign would only be brought closer to the road.

Spoke in opposition: None

MOTION AND VOTE: Commissioner Smith made a motion to APPROVE 19V-003 — Amcon
Industrial. Commissioner Echols seconded. The motion carried.

IX. OLD BUSINESS: None
X. NEW BUSINESS:
Use Permit 191-002- Iron Horse Interest, L1.C

SUMMARY/STAFF PRESENTATION: To allow a multi-story self-storage facility on Senoia
Road/Hwy 74 with two concurrent variances: (1) 19CV-004 — A request to reduce the buffer
adjacent to residentially-zoned property from 100ft. to 50ft, and (2) 19CV-005 — A request to reduce
the front yard setback from 50ft. to 351t.

Ms. Mitchell stated that it was a request to allow a three-story self-storage facility on Senoia Road
behind the Quick Trip Gas Station and beside the Car Wash. She stated that staff’s recommendation
was approval conditional for the use permit. Ms. Mitchell stated that staff recommended approval
of variance 19CV-004 and recommended denial of variance 19CV-005.

Commissioner Phillips stated that all the buildings in the area were single-story. He asked why they
would they put a three-story storage unit in that location. Ms. Mitchell replied that typically
buildings could go up to 48 feet and that three stories typically would not exceed that height.

Commissioner Smith asked if the staff researched how far the development would be from the
residential area. Ms. Mitchell responded that the Peachtree Landing apartments were adjacent to
the site but did not know the proposed distance between the buildings. Ms. Mitchell stated that the
applicant would have to maintain the existing undisturbed buffer. She stated that the applicant
would have to maintain the mature trees on the site and provide fencing around the site.
Commissioner Smith asked if it were documented that they would do what Ms. Mitchell mentioned.
Ms. Mitchell stated that these issues should be addressed in the use permit conditions.

Commissioner Phillips asked about the buffer between the proposed storage facility and the car
wash. Ms. Mitchell replied that they would have to put landscaping in the front of the location.

Pape 2 of 10
City of Fairburn
City Hall
56 Malone Street
Fairburn, GA 30213




FAIRBURN PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION MINUTES MAY 7, 2019

However, because they were both commercial uses they might not need to have a buffer between
them.

Speke in Favor
Ms. Michele Battle, One West Court Square, Suite 750, Decatur, GA 30030

Ms. Battle stated that she was a representative for the applicant. She stated that she believed it was
an appropriate use for the location. She stated that they were between the QT (Quick Trip) and the
apartment complex, and that their building was about 751t deep into their site. Ms. Battle stated that
the apartment buildings were typically 3 to 4 stories, so the proposed use was not taller than the
other buildings. She stated that there was ample foliage between the properties, and they would
have landscaping, a transitional buffer and fencing along the perimeter. She explained that self-
storage facilities usually did not produce a lot of traffic. She added that the appearance would be
top notch, and renderings had been provided to the Commissioners. Ms. Battle noted that with the
surrounding commercial uses, this area was intended to be a commercial park that the proposed use
would fit into. She noted that Harris Road was a private street, where all property owners would be
required to maintain the right-of-way.

Commissioner Phillips asked how people would access the facility. Ms. Battle responded that the
three-story units were being seen more frequently. She stated that they would be climate-controlled
units with access from the interior, They would also have roll-up door options. Commissioner
Phillips asked if there would be staff at the storage unit 24/7. Ms, Battle replied that there would
be regular office hours from 9:30am to 6:00pm. Tenants would have key card or pin number access
to the facility from 6:00am to 10:00pm. Commissioner Echols asked if there was stairway or
elevator access in the facility. Ms. Battle replied that it would be elevator access.

Commissioner Smith asked the developer if they had considered existing traffic from QuikTrip, the
car wash and Cracker Barrel when choosing this location. Mr. Ed Barber of Iron Horse Interests
stated that he had considered two sites, but decided this site had better access. Mr. Barber stated
that he asked employees from the car wash and Starbucks if they had any problems getting in and
out. He stated that it was not a high traffic area. Mr. Barber stated that tenants typically leased
storage for one year or more and came once or twice to the facility. He gave the average number
of customers that QuikTrip and the car wash had per day and week and stated that they would be a
small fraction of those numbets.

Commissioner Phillips asked what type of vehicles he planned on having at the location. Mr. Barber
replied that generally it would be pickup trucks and cars. He stated that some units were as small
as S square feet. Generally, tenants were apartment or single-family dwellers. Mr. Barber stated
that there would be very little tractor trailer traffic,

Commissioner Phillips asked about resolving issues on Harris Road, since it was a private road.
Mr. Barber stated that there were property owner’s association agreements with cross-easements
for traffic, detention and common area maintenance. Commissioner Echols asked Mr. Barber what
he meant by very little tractor trailer use. Mr. Barber replied that at his other facility they had very
little tractor trailer traffic. Mr. Paul Chase of [ron Horse Interests stated that his facility on South
Cobb Drive received around dne tractor trailer per month. However, the site could handle a tractor
trailer if one came on the site. Ms. Battle stated that the facility would primarily be for apartment
dwellers and single-family home dwellers; it would not be an industrial facility. She stated that
people would come for drop-off, and not more than 10-20 people would come in and out at a time.
She reiterated that it would have a very low impact on traffic.

Page 3 of 10
City of Faitburn
City Hail
56 Malone Street
Faitbura, GA 30213



FAIRBURN PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION MINUTES MAY 7, 2019

Commissioner Phillips asked for the fill rate from their other facility. Mr. Chase replied that they
stayed between 88% to 93% occupied. Ms. Battle noted the use permit requirements for a radius
restriction on self-storage facilities. She noted that this prevented several self-storage facilities from
being lumped together.

Spoke in opposition: None

MOTION AND VOTE: Commissioner Echols made a motion to APPROVE 19U-002 - Iron
Horse Interest, LLC. Commissioner Phillips seconded. Commissioner Smith was in opposition.
The motion carried. Commissioner Phillips made a motion to DENY variance 19CV-004.
Commissioner Echols seconded. The motion carried. Commissioner Phillips made a motion to
DENY variance 19CV-005 based on staff recommendation. Commissioner Echols seconded. The
motion carried.

Conceptual Plan 19C-003 — Project Miles

SUMMARY/STAFF PRESENTATION: A request to approve the conceptual site plan for an
industrial development consisting of three warehouse buildings totaling 1,045,967 square feet on
Creekwood Road.

Ms. Peeks stated that the applicant was proposing an industrial development consisting of three
warehouse buildings totaling 1,045,967 square feet on 99 acres along Creekwood Road. She stated
that the property was rezoned to M-1 Light Industrial District in November 2017, She stated that
the project was submitted to the Atlanta Regional Commission and the Georgia Regional Transit
Authority for DRI review in 2017. Ms. Peeks stated that the applicant would be required to meet
all parking, buffer, open space and stormwater management requirements and the zoning conditions
that were approved from the rezoning case in 2017. Ms. Peeks stated that staff’s recommendation
was approval conditional of the conceptual plan to construct a 1,045,967 square foot industrial
development,

Commissioner Phillips asked about the warehouses being placed along Creekwood Road and near
Line Creek, which was an agricultural area. Ms. Peeks stated that no trucks would come down
Creekwood Road. She stated that the only traffic that would come down Creekwood Road would
be for the 24,000 square foot warehouse. All other traffic would use a private drive that was an
extension of Qakley Industrial Boulevard, Ms, Peeks stated that this was part of the zoning
conditions - that no trucks could go down Creekwood Road past the bridge.

Spoke in Favor
Mr. Wayne Matthews

Mr. Mathews, representative for the developer, stated that this was a concept plan so staff would
review it again during the land disturbance process. He stated that the developer was proposing a
road to run parallel with Highway 85 to keep the truck traffic off Creekwood Road. He stated that
he was required to meet all the zoning conditions.

Commissioner Phillips asked Ms. Peeks if there would be another I-85 exit in the future. Ms. Peeks
replied that there had been talks about an exit between Gullatt and Johnson Read, but she was not
sure of the timeline.

Spoke in opposition: None

Page 4 of 10
City of Fairburn
City Hall
56 Malong Street
Fairburn, GA 30213



FAIRBURN PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION MINUTES MAY 7, 2019

MOTION AND VOTE: Commissioner Smith made a motion to APPROVE conceptual plan
19C-003. Commissioner Echols seconded. The motion carried.

Rezoning 19RZ-002 — South Fulton, LLC

SUMMARY/STAFF PRESENTATION: To rezone +/- 75 acres on Virlyn B. Smith Road from
R-2 (Single-Family Residential District) to R-3 (Single-Family Residential District) to allow the
development of 171 single family houses,

Ms. Peeks stated that the applicant was requesting to rezone +/-75 acres on Virlyn B, Smith Road
from R-2 (Single-Family Residential District) to R-3 (Single-Family Residential District), to allow
the development of 171 single family houses. She stated that in the 2035 Comprehensive Plan
designated 49.6 acres of the site as Low Density Residential, which would allow 1/3 acre lots. An
additional 15.3 acres of the property was designated as Town Center Mixed Use, which allows all
residential types. Ms. Peeks stated the proposal was consistent with the Comprehensive Plan goals
to create stable, safe, well-maintained neighborhoods that would maintain their value over time,
allow for a variety of home styles, materials, and lot sizes and accommodate pedestrians to allow
for alterative access to downtown.

Ms. Peeks stated that this project came before the Commissioners last year when the developer was
proposing townhomes and single-family houses. She noted that the applicant met with the
community and took away the townhouse portion of the development. The proposal was now all
single-family houses based on what the citizens in the community wanted. She stated that now they
were asking for the rezoning from R-2 to R-3. Ms. Peeks described the project, stating that the
development would provide sidewalks on Virlyn B. Smith, pedestrian-scale lighting on internal
roads, and well-landscaped front and rear yards. She stated that the facade would consist of about
25% brick, Staff’s recommendation was approval of the rezoning petition.

Commissioner Phillips asked Ms. Peeks to explain the difference between R-2 and R-3, Ms. Peeks
responded that the numbers represent the size of the lot. She gave an example that the R-2
represented 2 units per acre, R-3 represented 3 units per acre, and R-4 represented 4 units per acre.
Commissioner Phillips asked if they could build more houses by rezoning from R-2 to R-3. Ms.
Peeks replied yes. Commissioner Phillips stated that he preferred to see more space between the
houses. Commissioner Phillips also asked about how fire hydrants would fit in the development.
Ms. Peeks responded to Commissioner Phillips first question, stating that property owners could
rezone their property based on what the Comprehensive Plan designated as appropriate. She stated
that for this particular case, the Comprehensive Plan character area was Low Density Residential,
which allowed the developer to build from 1 acre to 1/3 acre. She added that 15 acres of the site
was consider Town Center Mixed Use, where the applicant build townhouses. She stated, however,
that the applicant took away the fownhomes as a compromise and planned to do single family
homes, which was a less intense use. Ms. Peeks responded to Commissioner Phillips’ second
question, stating that staff comments from several departments were given to the developer to give
them an idea of the City’s requirements. She stated that the developer would have to abide by all
the fire codes and water and sewer requirements. She stated that per the conditions, the developer
would have to put in turning lanes, striping, sidewalks and curb and gutter.

Commissioner Phillips stated that four parcel tax 1Ds were given, which were all on different
streets. He asked how the different parcels in different placed added up to 75.9 acres.

Ms. Peeks responded that when she pulled the parcel ID numbers, she went to the Fulton County
website and verified the lots that were on the plan and in the legal description. Commissioner

Page 5 ol 0
City of Fairburan
Cily Hall
56 Malone Street
Fairburn, GA 30213



FAIRBURN PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION MINUTES MAY 7,2019

Phillips stated that he had used the same source as Ms. Peeks had used, and it did not show him
that information.

Commissioner Phillips stated that the development was going to go from Virlyn B. Smith Road to
Cemetery Street. He asked if the developer was going to provide access to the downtown roads.
Ms. Peeks replied that it was still an option. She noted that the ordinance required one ingress/egress
for every 125 lots. She stated that the previous proposal had two entrances on Virlyn B. Smith but
now he was only required to do one entrance. However, the applicant still proposed one on Fisher
Drive as an access to the site. She stated that the City would have to take on the initiative to make
it a full road, because it was currently not in condition to be a full access road. Commissioner
Phillips inquired about bike lanes, recreational areas and school buses drop-off areas. Ms. Peeks
stated that the developer was proposing a playground, pavilion and had 11.2 acres of open space.
She also noted that the streams would be protected by the state and city stream buffer ordinances.

Commissioner Smith asked for the average square footage of the homes. Ms. Peeks deferred the
question to the applicant.

Spoke in Favor:
Mr. Richard Ferry, 270 N. Jeff Davis Drive, Fayettevilie, GA 30214

Mr. Ferry gave an overview of the South Fulton, LLC company and described the location of the
proposed development. Mr. Ferry stated that they were a moderate-sized subdivision of 171
proposed lots. He described the project’s history, stating that they first came before the Commission
in October 2018. He noted that the original proposal had 200 townhomes, which generated a lot of
questions to the Commission and audience. After meeting with the Durham Lakes HOA, Mr. Ferry
stated that the townhomes would not sit well with the neighbors. Therefore, they decided to build
all single-family homes with about 11 acres of open space.

Mr. Ferry described the building setbacks — 35° front and 10 side. He stated that with 20° feet
between the house, this provided a good amount of side yard. He noted that a typical fot would
have 357 in the rear, although some lots were deeper.

Mr. Ferry stated that as developers, they developed lots and then sold them to home builders. He
noted that when the Commissioners asked for price points and renderings the first time, they did
not have a home builder on board. However, they currently had a builder who was interested in the
project. The home builder provided some renderings, which Mr. Ferry shared with the
Commissioners. He noted the brick on the front of the homes combined with some cement board
siding.

Regarding water accessibility, Mr. Ferry stated that Fairburn staff had informed him that the flow
to the project would be 68,000 gallons per day, which the City could supply. Mr. Fetry discussed
the financial impact on the City. He cited the North Georgia Water Planning District’s water and
sewer rate study. Based on this study, he stated that the water tap fee would be $2,700 and the sewer
tap fee would be $3,500, which at full development would result in $1,060,000. The new
development plan at 171 single-family lots would use 41,000 gallons per day. He noted that the
water and sewer revenue on an annual basis would raise $80,000 in user fees and $75,000 in sewer
fees, based on an annual consumption of 7,000 gallons per month.

Regarding traffic, Mr. Ferry stated that with a 75-acre development the current R-2 zoning would
allow 150 lots. They were proposing 171 lots. Mr, Ferry stated that the 171 lots would only produce
an additional 124 trips per day more than the 150 lots would generate. The AM peak hour would
have 11 more trips for the 171 lots, compared to the 150 lots allowed under R-2. The PM peak hour

would have 17 more trips than the 150 lots allowed under R-2.

Page 6 of 10
City of Fairburn
City Hall
36 Malone Street
Fairburn, GA 30213



FAIRBURN PLANNING COMMiSSION ACTION MINUTES MAY 7, 2019

Regarding schools, Mr. Ferry stated that he had not received student data for the proposed
development. He referred instead to the student data provided for the original proposal of 286 units.
He stated that the original proposal would have generated 57 to 168 elementary students, 16 to 38
middle school students and 27 to 50 high school students. He stated that he did not know what the
exact numbers were for the updated proposal. He noted that the new STEM school would have an
impact on where children could attend school.

Regarding the environment, Mr. Ferry stated that his company was always concerned about the
effects of development on creeks. He noted that they would adhere to the 75-foot stream buffer. He
also noted that the 11.2 acres of open space were in the areas most important for water recharge.

Mr. Ferry stated that they updated their traffic study and submitted it to staff. He stated that the
engineer had reviewed it and made recommendations. Mr. Ferry stated that they agreed with the
recommendations for improvements.

Lastly, Mr. Ferry addressed price points. He stated that the housing market was bound by comps,
where a mortgage company could not give the lender more than the home was worth. Mr. Ferry
stated that they were proposing a home size from 2,200 to 3,200 square feet. Using a median
number of 2,600 square feet, the price for a new sale in Fairburn would be $239,102. A 2,800
square foot home would cost $250,000. The 3,200 square foot homes would be higher. Adding
granite countertops and other items would also raise the price.

Commissioner Smith asked if the average home would be 2,600 square feet. Mr. Ferry replied yes.
Commissioner Smith inquired if there would be any basements. Mr. Ferry stated that basements
would be based on the contour and topography of the property. However, due to the topography
Mr. Ferry believed some homes would have basements.

Spoke in opposition:
Danielle Batie, 1 Victoria Drive, Fairburn, GA 36213

Ms. Batie expressed her concerns about traffic. She stated that at times you could not enter or exit
existing homes due to the traffic from the Renaissance Festival. She stated that adding 171 homes
would stress public services such as fire and police. She stated that there were no police to govern
the traffic, causing residents to have difficulty leaving home. She also asked about the location of
the development’s entrance in relationship to her home. Ms. Batic stated that improved access to I-
85 had also not been addressed yet.

Mike Burgess, 396 Rivertown Road, Fairburn, GA 30213

Mr. Burgess stated that per the traffic study, the development would add 1,700 new trips. He stated
that improvements should be made to the road before adding this many new trips. He also noted
that the schools were predicted to be overcrowded. He stated that the STEM school was not a school
for all students, where transportation had to be provided by the parents. Mr. Burgess stated that it
was already zoned for R-2. He asked that the City grow in a smart and healthy way.

Rebuttal:
Richard Ferry, 270 N. Jeff Davis Drive, Fayetteville, GA 30214

Mr. Ferry stated that they had spoken with the Renaissance Festival and homeowners and
acknowledged that it was a crowded festival. He noted that the developer was proposing another
entrance to the development from Brooks Drive. He envisioned the second entrance to be for local
traffic, and not a cut-through.

Page 7 of 10
City of Fairburn
City Hall
56 Malonz Street
Fairburn, GA 30213



FAIRBURN PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION MINUTES MAY 7, 2019

Mr. Ferry stated that the entrance to the development would be directly across from the entrance to
Victorian Estates because this was a safer way to operate traffic. Mr. Ferry also addressed the traffic
impacts — stating that it was only 11 trips difference from the morning traffic with an R-2
development. He stated that the townhomes were removed. He asked that the project be approved
with the recommendations provided by staft.

Comimnissioner Phillips inquired if the developer would consider putting a traffic light along Virlyn
B. Smith. Mr. Ferry stated that this would not favor Virlyn B. Smith, He gave the example that a
number of cars along Virtyn B. Smith would be stopped to let one car out of their development.
This was why the City Engineer proposed left hand turn lanes so that the cars would move out of
the flow of traffic. Commissioner Phillips asked about the entrance at Brooks/Fisher Drive and
asked why Brooks Drive could not be extended. Mr. Ferry stated that a resident owned a house
close to the right-of-way, so that issue would have to be resolved. He also stated that he did not
want to use this entrance as a cut-through for general traffic.

MOTION AND VOTE: Commissioner Smith made a motion to APPROVE 19R7-002 — South
Fulton, LLC. Commissioner Echols seconded. The motion carried.

Rezoning 19RZ-004 — Geo H. Green Oil [Fairburn Travel Center]

SUMMARY/STAFF PRESENTATION: To rezone +/- 4,387 acres from C-2 (General
Commercial District) to M-1 (Light Industrial District) to allow 50 trucks parking spaces.

Ms. Peeks stated that Green Qil Trucking was requesting to rezone 4.387 acres from C-2 (General
Commercial District) to M-1 (Light Industrial District) to allow 50 trucks parking spaces. She stated
that this petition qualified as a DRI (Development of Regional Impact) and was reviewed by the
ARC, GDOT and the Georgia Regional Transportation Authority. She stated that GRTA had
approved the petition with no conditions and GDOT did not recommend upgrades to state route 74,
Ms. Peeks stated that staff’s recommendation was approval conditional.

Ms. Peeks noted that the project was annexed into the City and rezoned to C-2 in November 2007,
She noted that the current use of the property was in compliance at the time of the rezoning. She
stated that when the ordinance was revised in 2012, truck stops were removed from M-1 leaving
the use as legally non-conforming. She stated that the Fairburn Travel Center had rezoned to 16.83
acres in 2016 from C-2 (General Commercial) to M-1 (Light Industrial District) to allow the
expansion of the existing truck stop. She stated that the rezoning of the 4.387 acres would make
the subject propetty consistent with the truck stop property. Ms. Peeks also noted that in 2018 the
Atlanta Regional Commission conducted a truck parking study to assess the severity of truck
parking in the Atlanta region. The study showed that there was a challenge with truck drivers
finding adequate and safe parking spaces in the region. She stated that with the number of
warehouses in the region, additional parking was needed.

Commissioner Echols asked what routes the trucks were taking. Ms. Peeks responded that they
would be entering the truck stop on Oakley Industrial Boulevard and exiting on Harris Road.
Commissioner Echols asked if there was already an approval for increased parking at the truck stop
on Oakley Industrial. Ms. Peeks replied that in 2016, there was a rezoning for an expansion.
However, the parking was existing gravel parking. The parking lot was now paved. Commissioner
Echols asked if there were an increase to 80 parking spaces. Ms. Peeks clarified that the spaces
were already there but were now paved.

Page 8 of 10
City of Fairburn
City Hatl
56 dalone Street
Fairburn, GA 30213



FAIRBURN PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION MINUTES MAY 7, 2019

XIL

XI11I.

Spoke in Favor
Mr. Ed Wyatt, 41 Dodd Street, Fairburn, GA 30213

Mr. Wyatt stated that he worked for the Green Oil company on Dodd Street. He stated that they
were requesting to rezone the last piece of property at the site from C-2 to M-1. He stated that the
need for the truck parking in the area was severe. Mr. Wyatt noted that trucks were parking where
they were not supposed to park, such as the expressway ramps, hotels and restaurants. Mr. Wyatt
noted that the truck traffic was already in the area. He stated that truckers could only drive a certain
number of hours per day, so the additional 50 spaces would provide a safe place to park. He noted
that there was a detention pond and driveway existing on the property. Mr. Wyatt noted that the
trucks could only enter the truck stop one way — from Oakley Industrial — and could only exit from
Harris Road.

Commissioner Echols asked if the trucks that was parked there had to pay a daily rate. Mr, Wyatt
replied yes. Mr. Wyatt responded that there was a waiting list for trucks to park. He stated that
truckers could pay $5 per night or $125 per month. He stated that you would not have multiple
trucks coming in and out of each space. Commissioner Phillips asked if Harris Road was a private
road. Mr. Wyatt replied that it was not. Commissioner Phillips stated that he had driven by the
property and noticed that the topography was steep. He inquired about detention, Mr, Wyatt stated
that the detention pond was engineered for the entire development.

Commissioner Phillips asked if the auto repair shop on-site was used for major maintenance. Mr.
Wyatt stated that the occupants of the shop wanted to have the trucks out of the shop on the same
day; they would not be handling any major jobs. Mr, Wyatt stated that if it was major maintenance
issues, the truck would have to call a tow truck and take it to another facility for the issue.

Commissioner Smith asked what type of maintenance was being done on the trucks. Mr. Wyatt
responded mostly new tires, alignments and tune ups. Commissioner Smith asked if the truck tires
were being disposed of properly. Mr. Wyatt replied yes. He stated that the truckers had to pay for
the tires to be properly disposed of.

Spoke in opposition: None

MOTION AND VOTE: Commissioner Echols made a motion to APPROVE rezoning 19RZ-004
- Geo H. Green Qil. Commissioner Smith seconded. The motion carried.

STAFF REPORT: None

COMMISSION MEMBERS COMMENTS: Chairman Stoney thanked the Council members for
their attendance.

ADJOURNMENT: Commissioner Smith made a motion to adjourn. Commissioner Echols
seconded. The motion carried.

Meeting adjourned at 8:37 p.m.

Page 9 of 10
City of Fairburn
City Hall
56 Malone Street
Fairburn, GA 30213



FATRBURN PLANNING COMMISSION

ACTION MINUTES

MAY 7,2019

Approval Signatures

Date Approved -

Elise Stoney,
‘Chairman:

Kimberly Mitchell, |

Recording Secretary

Page 10 of 10
City of Fairburn
City Eall
56 Malone Strect
Fairburn, GA 30213



CITY OF FAIRBURN
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION
AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: REZONING 19RZ-005 — City of Fairburn

() AGREEMENT () POLICY / DISCUSSION ( )CONTRACT
() ORDINANCE ( )RESOLUTION ( X ) OTHER
Planning and Zoning Commission: 06.04.19 Mayor and City Council: 07.02.19

DEPARTMENT: Community Development/Planning and Zoning

BUDGET IMPACT: None

PUBLIC HEARING: ( ) Yes ( X )No

PURPOSE: For the Planning and Zoning Commission to review and consider the rezoning of +/- 0.953 acres of
City owned property adjacent to the Clorox warehouse facility on Creekwood Road from AG-1 (Agricultural
District) to M-1 (Light Industrial District).

DESCRIPTION: Clorox is in need to expand their warehouse/distribution facility located at 1595 Oakley
Industrial Blvd. by adding 345,450 square feet of floor area. The expansion of the facility was approved by the City
in 2010 and was authorized pursuant to a 2010 development of regional impact (DRI) approval from the Atlanta
Regional Commission (ARC) and the Georgia Regional Transportation Authority (GRTA). When the 2010 DRI
review was approved, the approval was based on a 1,490,850 square foot distribution center. Currently, the Clorox
warehouse facility is 1.1 million square feet.

Section 80-372 [Buffers and Open Space] of the city’s ordinance requires M-1 (Light Industrial) zoned properties
that abuts all other zoning districts to maintain a 50-foot undisturbed buffer. The northeast corner of the Clorox
property abuts City owned property that is zoned AG-1 (Agricultural District). Rezoning the City-owned property
from AG-1 (Agricultural) to M-1 (Light Industrial District) will eliminate the requirement of a 50-foot undisturbed
buffer for the Clorox facility expansion project.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL



APPLICATION INFORMATION

Rezoning Petition 19RZ-005

[APPLICANT/PETITIONER INFORMATION

Property Owner Petitioner
City of Fairburn City of Fairburn
[PROPERTY INEORMATION

Address, Creekwood Road [parcel # 07 390001781384, 07390001791201]

Land Lot and District: Land Lot 78 and 79 and District 7

Frontage: Creekwood Road

Area of Property: +/- 0.953 acres

Existing Zoning and Use: AG-1 (Agricultural District)

Overlay District: N/A

Prior Zoning Cases/History: The final site plan approval for Phase 1 construction of the Clorox facility
was issued on November 9, 2006. The DRI final notice was provided to the
city on May 25, 2010.

On January 7, 2010, the City Council approved the rezoning of a 30-acre
City owned tract at the intersection of Qakley Industrial Blvd. and
Creekwood Road from AG-1 to M-1 (Light Industrial District). Also, on
January 7, 2010, City Council approved the option agreement with IDI
Industrial Developments International for the sale of the 30-acre tract.

2035 Comprehensive Future N/A

Land Use Map Designation:

Compatibility with Fairburn’s  The request to rezone property from AG-1 (Agricultural District) to M-1

2035 Comprehensive Plan: (Light Industrial District) is not compatible with the 2035 Comprehensive
Plan and Future Development Map. However, M-1 (Light Industrial District)
properties are adjacent to the city owned property and the rezoning would
not cause a detriment to the life, safety and welfare of the citizens of
Fairburn and would not negatively affect the use or usability of adjacent or
nearby properties.

Proposed Zoning: M-1 (Light Industrial District)

[MEETING AND HEARINGDATES .. .

Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting _ Mayor and City Council Public Hearing
June 4, 2019 July 2, 2019

To rezone City owned property from AG-1 (Agricultural District) to M-1 (Light Industrial District)

[EXTSTING LAND USE AND ZONING OF ABUTTING PROPERTIES

North: M-1 (Light Industrial District)

18RZ-005 City of Fairbura
PZC Meeting June 4, 2019
Page 2 of §



East: AG-1 (Agricultural District)

South: M-1 (Light Industrial District) and AG-1 (Agricultural District)

West: M-1 (Light Industrial District)

Zoning Map

0
D
M-1
" L]
_ FL og1
M-1
|

Clorox Warehouse Facility

1595 Qakley Ind. Blvd.

+/- 0.386 acres
From AG-1 to M-1

Ariel View

+/- 0.567 acres
From AG-1 to M-1

Clorox Warehouse Facility

1595 Oakley Ind. Blvd.

+/- 0.386 acres
From AG-1 to M-1

+/- 0.567 acres
From AG-1 to M-1

19RZ-005 City of Fairburn
PZC Meeting June 4, 2019
Page 3 of 5



Floodplain

100-yr and 500-yr
floodplain proximity
to subject property

S Flood Hazard Areas

100-Year Floodplain
500-Year Floodplain

| PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

This rezoning request is a City initated petition; therefore a public particpation meeting was not held. However, the
public hearing was advertised according to the City’s public hearing notification ordinance for amendments to the
zoning code and map [Section 80-299].

[ ZONING IMPACT ANALYSIS

A. Does the proposal permit a use that is suitable in view of the use and development of adjacent and nearby
property?

Staff is of the opinion that the proposed use is suitable in view of the use and development of adjacent and nearby
property. The surrounding area consists of: M-1 (Light Industrial District) to the north, AG-1 (Agricultural,
District) to the east, M-1 (Light Industrial District) and AG-1 (Agricultural District) to the south, and M-1 (Light
Industrial District) to the west.

B. Does the proposal adversely affect the existing use or usability of adjacent or nearby property?

The subject property abuts existing M-1 (Light Industrial District) properties; therefore, rezoning the 0.935 acres to
M-1 (Light Industrial District) will be consistent with the zoning of adjacent properties. There is approximately
167.224 acres of industrially zoned property adjacent to the subject property. Therefore, staff is of the opinion that
the proposal, if approved, will not have an adverse impact on the use or usability of adjacent or nearby properties.
C. Does the property have a reasonable economic use as currently zoned?

Staff is of the opinion that the subject property has a reasonable economic use as currently zoned.

D. Will the proposal result in a use that could cause excessive or burdensome use of existing streets,
transportation facilities, utilities or schools?

19RZ-005 City of Fairburn
PZC Meeting June 4, 2019
Page 4 of &



Staff is of the opinion that the proposal will not result in a use which will cause an excessive or burdensome use of
the existing infrastructure. Currently, the property is undeveloped with dense vegetation [mature trees]. There are
no immediate plans of the City to develop the property.

E. Is the proposal in conformity with the policies and intent of the land use plan?

Staff is of the opinion that the proposal is not consistent with the Future Development Map, which designates the
property as Greenspace. The property is heavily vegetated and is in proximity to the 100-year and 500-year
floodplain. Also, a power line easement runs parallel toithe properties, which can hinder the full development of

subject property.

F. Are there existing or changing conditions that affect the use and development of the property which support
either approval or denial of the proposal?

Staff is of the opinion that there are no existing or changing conditions affecting the use and development of the
property, which give supporting grounds for approval of the applicant’s proposal.

G. Does the proposal permitl a use that can be considered environmentally adverse to the natural resources,
environment, and citizens of Fairburn?

Staff is of the opinion that the proposal would not permit a use which could be considered environmentally adverse
to the natural resources, environment, or citizens of Fairburn. The property [0.953 acres] will remain undeveloped.

[STAFFRECOMENDATION =

It is the opinion of staff that the rezoning of the City owned property is not in conformity with the current Future
Development Map, which recommends Greenspace, However, the subject property [0.935 acres] will remain
undisturbed and is heavily vegetated with mature trees. The property is in proximity of the [00-year and 500-year
floodplain so the likelihood of future development on the property is relatively small. Also, the subject property is
adjacent to approximately 167.224 acres of industrially zoned properties. Therefore, based on these reasons, staff
recommends APPROVAL of the rezoning petition.

ATTACHMENTS
Survey

18RZ-005 City of Fairburn
PZC Meeting June 4, 2019
Page b of §



[ o
(7 PR — N = )
9‘4.' /a@_"-wn\v i — § §
A W G - N : — S
4\) ¥ ey ALEJANDRO CANTOR B L P 5
A o Yoy O TAX PARCEL I0: 07 ' e g | A ¥
@?’ /\ . ;;‘,’, e ‘ J90001780253 y \ sl . §
‘/\ ,/ a%w'uw@‘“‘” ______________ - i ” B%L“%%g g
SO L il “wigmw ‘ls.-gb@
1 N o | I L %TS‘& 8
o : . g8
g ¢ S36'28'20"F | / y 2 §§;E§E Q
: e S 180.96" / p 55236
~ 4 ’ 1 i
0 8 . { —
) ~ \ /PF IPC . \. ke
~ | it ; d
el \ . i y ! /
i A , ‘ i i
d nos1811E eSO A \ e
e 361.62' 08 42511 FG 99 \ CEORGIA WEST oK SITE MAP (NTS)
ek N oS
-
: : 'R
N44'28'55"F L —. N :
22882 T, &3
' . PROPERTY LINES §§
Q
L SHOWN ON THIS -
" =
\ SURVEY ARE AT THE 3
2 \ APPROXIMATE e
A . \ LOCATION =
L D:) 1)
4 l N N3
o 8 5 o
2 S
- L—— SHI-
=t b a_ 2
' \ 5 R &
Shw e, . U g o i
2., \ < =
) U s | O =
S Hw n G, & l\ 2 oz 1
9 g W
Sy S \ S 3
aae RS N &
LEGEND N e @
i i . = - e Q: L3

O 1ROV AN FOUND (44 Re-Rod unless noted ofbermise) - \ y s ) 5

OR /R AW ST (4 Re—-FRod unless nolsd otherise) == i \ 0

On WAV AN M CAP FOUND \ A

o 2T =

Oor 0PN JOP AFE FOUND ] DS

Qer CRUP TOP PIPE FOURD u o \ E’G

o] AMRE tre! i ]

g ey k NOTE: | | o :

gﬂf COVORETE WOENT FORD 3 ::'r-mt PIPE LOCATION, SIZE AND TYPE SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON RECORD SET, / N T

BT OF WAY MO FOUND P - ; =
B A A e e SITE DEVELOPMENT PLANS FOR CLOROX, DATED MARCH 01, 2010, LAST / e A
® POKER PAE ®'pie REVISED MARCH 30, 2010, PREPARED BY MCCRARY ENGINEERING, INC. ' :
(o)
Q—  SFUE PUE B LT /

L] POWER PALE B QU WiRE /
——  QURHEAD PONER / TELEFHANE LIVE > ]

= ZECIRE METER ot

3 HATER VALYE XS N89'26'12"E S554°06'57"E ;

et AR HIORANT - REZONING PARCEL 1 100.56 10.08' /

WD MR HETER e | N -

e |, n 0.386 ACRES /16,820 SQ. FT. .. g

e STORK SEHR LE mfﬁ]??ﬂi i P8 214 / PG 57 %
[ o . — — . ./
= M%&;@YMEM ) — E o, N &L S5401'55"F 4]
®  cmm | 320.79' N/ ] e N N540s'09"W v, / 129.73' =
e i . | ’ US INDUSTRIAL REIT l-DISTRIEUTION 1Yl .. 925 —_\{ é /// )
® o . ” R e % S I, s / ¢
— S SANTARY TR L ) 80.87" : R
A 4 5281384 7"W
T SUWHRY SEHER QAT | | TAX PARCEL 15 07 So0DOIT81210 SOk | oA 3 37.49'

® SUIHRY SEHER MANHAE | D6 32143 PG 463 70e S N I

TELEPHONE BOX - T i i : =)

o TELEPHONE MANHOLE Jl “\\_‘___% / 53,19 =

@ LOHITERIVE BELL | L e i B R o —-— = vl 7 .

(5] FIBER OPTIC MARKER | _—— —‘—4 gg;if 40" =
—W—  LDERGROUND WATER LIE . of«[n]«]~|&
—G—  UADERGROND GAS LV | : T —— s S89'48'57°E N —
—E—  UMDEROROUND ELECTRIC LIVE | | o~ Sy 7 65.06" AT &
e WW MM | | | MARGAR%ﬁRﬂSNER REZONING PARCEL 2 Sy o é i
—FO—  UMAROROUND FIBER OPIIE LINE I i TAX PARCEL iD: 07 390001790302 0.567 ACRES / 24,682 sQ, FT. //// o 5 % g

y | oLk Fa cene 4 | ea T e = i . — 5152524 0. |G25,
ABBREVIA TTONS | 1A & 1 ¢ e Q. |k28:
TAX PARCEL JD: 07 ry/ 3 TS < Ziz> 49

: PN PSR N T — \ - S3441°05"W J5|ogge

ATFROE AFFRONMATE l | 05 5087 P8 86 / —\——__ ______ \ /';./ //* nde; 4?,;0;’: 73.49 o B Eg %E

a BN MARK ! \ 744 / . — O 2|52 Ez’g

ate U & GUITER l - \ WA A NI5E12"E 5131813 Rl REF

ar CORYGATED HETHL PPE ! / N \ /4 . 86.45" 73.61 & mlEosat

a CNIRE i / 00331 z (38253

@ 25D BB [ Sglne g By

ar DUCIE (i PE | P g Q22532

o oiECTHAY ' Z E|228¢

" W o § Za g~

POR  PONT OF GEGHING I \ Z 7553

SHE SWELE MG CATY BASIY | < A&

oHE DOURLE WHE CATCH EASW /Z \ e "3

7 PLAT B00K - : i ¢

wt MOV OF FORUALLY Know what's below. | or"v’f-::rnem?h. z

L ff” %% COMGRETE PIFE Calihafu_reyoudlg. | 32466 PG 681 \ Lé
\ 1A1P POST ) JANG




